
  
 
   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

        
   

 
  

 
  

      
 

   
    

      
  

      
 

   
    

   
    

  
      

        
 

 
    

 
 

  
 
 
       
      
       
 

 
        
       
 

October 16, 2018 

Darren K. DeStefano 
Cooley LLP 
One Freedom Square 
11951 Freedom Drive 
Reston, VA  20190-5640 

Re: SEC v. Elon Musk, Civil Action No. 1:18-cv-08865 (S.D.N.Y., Sept. 27, 2018) - Waiver of 
disqualification pursuant to Rule 506(d)(2)(ii) of Regulation D 

Dear Mr. DeStefano: 

This letter responds to your letter dated September 28, 2018 (“Waiver Letter”), written on 
behalf of Space Exploration Technologies Corp. (“SpaceX”) and constituting an application for a 
waiver of disqualification under Rule 506(d)(2)(ii) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 
(“Securities Act”).  In the Waiver Letter, you requested relief from any disqualification that will arise 
as to SpaceX under Rule 506 of Regulation D under the Securities Act as a result of the entry of a 
final judgment on October 16, 2018 in the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
New York relating to the complaint filed by the Commission on September 27, 2018 against Elon 
Musk (the “Musk Judgment”) in SEC v. Elon Musk, (Civil Action No. 1:18-cv-08865). 

Based on the facts and representations in the Waiver Letter and assuming Elon Musk 
(“Musk”) fully complies with the Musk Judgment, we have determined that SpaceX has made a 
showing of good cause under Rule 506(d)(2)(ii) of Regulation D that it is not necessary under the 
circumstances to deny it reliance on Rule 506 of Regulation D by reason of the entry of the Musk 
Judgment.  Accordingly, the relief requested in the Waiver Letter regarding any disqualification that 
may arise as to SpaceX under Rule 506 of Regulation D by reason of the entry of the Musk Judgment 
is granted on the condition that Elon Musk fully complies with the terms of the Musk Judgment.  Any 
different facts from those represented or Musk’s failure to comply with the terms of the Musk 
Judgment would require us to revisit our determination that good cause has been shown and could 
constitute grounds to revoke or further condition the waiver to SpaceX.  The Commission reserves the 
right, in its sole discretion, to revoke or further condition the waiver under those circumstances. 

For the Commission, by the Division of Corporation Finance, pursuant to delegated authority. 

Sincerely, 

/s/ 

Elizabeth M. Murphy 
Associate Director 
Division of Corporation Finance 
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